United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Registration Form

This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in Guidelines for Completing National Register Forms (National Register Bulletin 16). Complete each item by marking "x" in the appropriate box or by entering the requested information. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter "N/A" for "not applicable." For functions, styles, materials, and areas of significance, enter only the categories and subcategories listed in the instructions. For additional space use continuation sheets (Form 10-900a). Type all entries.

1. Name of Property
   historic name Chewning House
   other names/site number McCurry Hotel, Charleston Boarding House

2. Location
   street & number 755 N. Main Street
   city, town Hendersonville
   state North Carolina code NC
   county Henderson code 089
   zip code 28739

3. Classification
   Ownership of Property
   ☑ private
   ☐ public-local
   ☐ public-State
   ☐ public-Federal
   Category of Property
   ☑ building(s)
   ☐ district
   ☐ site
   ☐ structure
   ☐ object
   Number of Resources within Property
   Contributing
   Noncontributing
   1 buildings
   0 structures
   0 objects
   Total

   Name of related multiple property listing:
   Historic and Architectural Properties in Hendersonville, N.C: A Partial Inventory
   Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register 0

4. State/Federal Agency Certification
   As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, I hereby certify that this nomination request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
   
   [Signature]
   State Historic Preservation Officer
   State or Federal agency and bureau
   Date 12-25-88

   In my opinion, the property ☐ meets ☐ does not meet the National Register criteria. ☐ See continuation sheet.
   
   Signature of commenting or other official
   State or Federal agency and bureau
   Date

5. National Park Service Certification
   ☐ entered in the National Register.
   ☐ See continuation sheet.
   ☐ determined eligible for the National Register. ☐ See continuation sheet.
   ☐ determined not eligible for the National Register.
   ☐ removed from the National Register.
   ☐ other, (explain:)

   Signature of the Keeper
   Date of Action

---

**Update:**

- Corrected the date to 12-25-88.
- Added signature lines and dates where necessary.
- Ensured all forms and boxes are completed accurately.
- Made sure the form is readable and organized.
6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC: hotel

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
DOMESTIC: hotel

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)
Classical Revival

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

| foundation | brick |
| walls       | weatherboard |
| roof        | asphalt |
| other       | wood |

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

Chewing House is a large, rambling frame boarding house at 755 N. Main Street, on the west side of the street, separated by a vacant lot from the Waverly, also being nominated to the Register at this time. The house sits on a narrow city lot two blocks north of the central business district. The house was built before 1906, and had a complete transformation between 1912 and 1922 when it was enlarged from a two-story building to the present three-story building with twenty guest rooms. The house retains architectural integrity from the 1920s period. Each stage of its architectural evolution represents the growth of Hendersonville as a tourist resort during the early twentieth century.

The original building, shown on the 1912 Sanborn Map as a two-story frame house, serves as the main core of the present building. This is a rectangular block, three bays wide and approximately six bays deep, of plain late Victorian design, with weatherboarded walls, a brick foundation and one-over-one sash windows. The symmetrical east facade has a central double leaf front door with upper lights, flanked by bay windows with wide Queen Anne style sash. The upper sash contain lozenge-patterned muntins, the lower sash a single pane. The second story of the facade has identical windows and the center bay above the entrance is a recessed balcony. The effect is that the two flanking windows appear to be bay windows. A single door opens to this balcony. The corners of the upper facade are bevelled, with narrow sash windows with upper lozenge-patterned sash, like the bay windows of the lower facade. The sides of the main block have narrower versions of the front windows, both single and in pairs.

Between the second and third story is a deep pent roof with boxed eaves, covered with asphalt shingles. This may be the remnant of the original roof covering the two-story building, or may have been added when the house was raised to three stories. The third story, added between 1912 and 1922, is weatherboarded, with a low hipped roof with overhanging eaves and exposed eave brackets. It is punctuated by pairs of one-over-one sash windows, the upper sash with Craftsman-style muntins.

A one-story hipped porch extends across the main facade and down the south side elevation to the rear one-story wing, probably the original kitchen. The porch apparently dates from the enlargement, and has paired square posts set on high brick bases across the facade, and square full-height posts down the south side. The entire porch has a plain wooden railing. The southeast corner of
the porch extends out in a polygonal gazebo, accented with a shallow roof pediment. At the northwest rear corner, a two-story wing extends from the main block and contains the dining room on the first floor and guest rooms upstairs. This wing dates from the enlargement.

On the interior, the basic floor plan and some of the trim of the original building survive. The front entrance opens into a large entrance hall, with a splendid stair rising in the corner, with a landing, to the second floor. The stair is of simple Colonial Revival character, and may be original. The entrance hall narrows to a hallway beyond the stairs. The registration counter is straight down the hall, and the dining room is off the hall on the north side. There are a total of thirty rooms, including twenty guest rooms distributed mostly on the upper two floors. The boarding house is laid out on a double-loaded center hall plan on all three floors.

To the right of the entrance hall is a parlor, the only room which apparently is unaltered from the original pre-1906 construction date. The late Victorian style mantel has simple pilasters supporting a molded shelf, and symmetrically molded door and window surrounds. While some symmetrically molded surrounds survive elsewhere on the first and second floors of the main core, most of the woodwork is plainer and appears to date from the 1910s and 1920s. Interior walls are plaster, most of which has been wallpapered. Floors are pine, and wide baseboards survive throughout. Interior doors are both five-panel, principally vertically configured, and six-panel, horizontally-configured compositions.

The dining room is about 30 by 30 feet square with two three-part window sets in the north wall. In each set the central window is only an upper half, leaving wall space below to receive a sideboard. The ceiling is crossed by boxed beams with crown moldings. A plain boxed column carries the beams in the center of the room.

The upstairs hallways are broad, and furnished as sitting areas. Each guest room is provided with a louvered ventilating door. Some rooms have late Victorian style mantels, some with mirrored overmantels.
8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:

- [ ] nationally
- [X] statewide
- [ ] locally

Applicable National Register Criteria

- [X] A
- [ ] B
- [X] C
- [ ] D

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions)

- [ ] A
- [ ] B
- [ ] C
- [ ] D
- [ ] E
- [ ] F
- [ ] G

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions)

ARCHITECTURE

ENTERTAINMENT/RECREATION

Period of Significance

ca. 1906-1929

Significant Dates

ca. 1906

Cultural Affiliation

N/A

Significant Person

N/A

Architect/Builder

unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

Along with the Waverly next door, Chewning House is one of the few large boarding houses in downtown Hendersonville which still serve their purpose. Both reflect the boom in tourism development which began in the late 19th century, and continued through the 1920s. Though of similar proportions, the Waverly still reflects the aesthetics of the Victorian period, while Chewning House is more a part of the domestic styles of the 1920s, representing a return to simpler interior detailing and classic proportions. Sanborn maps indicate that the structure was enlarged from a two-story building between 1912 and 1922.

W. A. Smith sold the 2/3 acre lot and house to Elsie Sindolf on October 10, 1906, for $3,175.00. At this time, it was known as the Smith-Green House (Henderson County Deed Book 56, p.154). On August 3, 1914, she sold the property to E. W. Vacher for $8,250. Mrs. Sindolf had changed the name to the Charleston Boarding House, and Mr. Vacher retained that name (Henderson County Deed Book 85, p.36). L. R. Chewning and wife Mattie bought the Charleston Boarding House from Vacher on May 18, 1916, for $8,500.00 (Henderson County Deed Book 92, p.153). The Chewnings probably enlarged the house sometime before 1922, when the Sanborn map shows a larger building. They also renamed it Chewning House, as the 1926/27 and 1937/38 Hendersonville City Directories both refer to it by this name.

In 1934, Mattie F. Chewning, widow, deeded Chewning House to Alan S. O'Neal, Trustee, Home Owner's Loan Corporation of Washington D. C. (Henderson County Deed Book 116, p.229). This corporation sold the property to E. J. Harrell and wife Eve on May 1, 1938, for $11,000.00 (Henderson County Deed Book 219, p.458). Sometime after 1934, the lot shrank to less than one half acre.

Later owners included T. M. Bonner and M. U. McCurry, who also owned the Waverly. The current owners of Chewning House continue to use it as an inn. They have renamed it the Claddagh Inn.

CONTEXT

Chewning House is one of the few remaining operating boarding houses from Hendersonville's tourism heyday. It is representative of the simpler domestic styles of the 1920s. It is illustrative of the Inns, Boarding Houses, and Hotels property type. Its relationship to Hendersonville is explained in "Tourism Development in Hendersonville, N C in the Railroad Years, 1879-1929," Hendersonville Multiple Property Documentation Form.
10. Geographical Data

Acreage of property: .44 acre

UTM References

A  |  B  |  C  |  D
---|---|---|---
36.7 | 39.0 | 6.0 | 7.0
Easting | Easting | Easting | Easting
Northing | Northing | Northing | Northing

Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated property is outlined in red on the enclosed Henderson County Tax Map No. 9568.08. It measures approximately 89.5' x 214'. It is parcel no. 6503.

Boundary Justification

The nominated property constitutes the entire city lot currently associated with Chewning House.

11. Form Prepared By

name/title: Ruth Little, Margaret Rothman, staff
organization: North Carolina SHPO
date: 1988
street & number: 109 E. Jones Street
city or town: Raleigh
state: NC
telephone: (919) 733-6545
zip code: 27611